
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

MAY 9, 2017 AT 6:45 PM

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B

AGENDA

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance.

Full Planning Commission agendas and packets are available online at www.cityofcordova.net.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

Chair Tom McGann, Commissioners Scott Pegau, John Baenen, Allen 

Roemhildt, Mark Frohnapfel, Heath Kocan, and Nancy Bird

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (voice vote)

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR (voice vote)

a. Minutes of April 11, 2017 Regular Meeting .......................................................................................Page 2

b. Record excused absence for Heath Kocan from the April 11, 2017 Regular Meeting

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

6. CORRESPONDENCE

a. State of Alaska DOT Public Notice ....................................................................................................Page 5

b. State of Alaska DOT Public Notice ....................................................................................................Page 7

c. Letter from Bruce and Sally Campbell................................................................................................Page 9

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

a. Guest Speakers

b. Audience comments regarding agenda items (3 minutes per speaker)

8. PLANNER’S REPORT ..........................................................................................................................Page 11

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

a. Variance Request – RJ Kopchak .........................................................................................................Page 12

b. Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods Modular Bunkhouses ....................................................Page 30

c. Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision.................................................................Page 49

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. Title 16 Building Code Discussion .....................................................................................................Page 85

11. PENDING CALENDAR

a. May 2017 Calendar .............................................................................................................................Page 95

b. June 2017 Calendar .............................................................................................................................Page 96

12. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

13. COMMISSION COMMENTS

14. ADJOURNMENT

Chair

Tom McGann

Commissioners

Scott Pegau

John Baenen

Allen Roemhildt

Mark Frohnapfel

Heath Kocan

Nancy Bird

City Planner

Samantha Greenwood

Assistant Planner

Leif Stavig



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

April 11, 2017

Page 1 of 3

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

APRIL 11, 2017 AT 6:30 PM

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B

MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Tom McGann called the Planning Commission Regular Meeting to order at 6:30 PM on April 

11, 2017 in Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B.

2. ROLL CALL

Present for roll call were Chair Tom McGann and Commissioners Scott Pegau, John Baenen, Allen 

Roemhildt, Mark Frohnapfel, and Nancy Bird. Heath Kocan was absent.

Also present was City Planner Samantha Greenwood and Assistant Planner Leif Stavig.

1 person was in the audience.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

M/Pegau S/Bird to approve the agenda.

Upon voice vote, motion passed 6-0.

Yea: McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Bird

Absent: Kocan

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

a. Minutes of March 28, 2017 Public Hearing

b. Minutes of March 28, 2017 Regular Meeting

c. Record excused absence for Heath Kocan from the March 28, 2017 Regular Meeting

d. Record unexcused absence for Allen Roemhildt from the March 28, 2017 Regular Meeting

M/Bird S/Roemhildt to approve the consent calendar.

Bird made a correction to the minutes of the April 11th Regular Meeting to clarify a statement that 

Pegau said regarding the commission’s criteria. There was no objection to the correction. 

Bird said that there was an incorrect statement made at the last meeting and she wondered about putting 

a notation in so that people reading the minutes would know. No change was made to the minutes.

Upon voice vote, motion passed 6-0.

Yea: McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Bird

Absent: Kocan

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

6. CORRESPONDENCE

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

2 of 96

planner2
DRAFT



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

April 11, 2017

Page 2 of 3

a. Guest Speakers

b. Audience comments regarding agenda items

8. PLANNER’S REPORT

Pegau asked if there was a permit for the work that Ocean Beauty was doing on their existing building. 

Greenwood said she would check on it, but she did not think it required a building permit. Stavig said 

the thing they tell everyone about commercial and industrial work is to check with the State Fire 

Marshall. 

Greenwood explained that the Army Corps of Engineers was looking for information about alternative 

sites for Shepard Point. 

Greenwood said she talked to the State Fire Marshall and any four-plexes will have to go through Fire 

and Life Safety Review. 

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

a. IRC Amendments Discussion

McGann said that he concurs with the Planning Department’s comments. He clarified that the 

existing amendments for the old code would be going completely away and that only the concept 

would become an amendment for the new code. Greenwood said that local amendments were made 

to the 1985 Uniform Building Code (UBC) and she wanted to see if there was a reason to keep them. 

If they do want to keep the concept of an amendment to the UBC then staff will take the time to find 

where it is in the 2012 International Residential Code (IRC) and make a new amendment. Stavig 

said that eventually there would be an ordinance repealing the old amendments, so it is important 

for them to have some sort of public process reviewing the old code.

Pegau said he thought it was important to maintain a definition for alley. McGann said the question 

was if it should be a building code definition. Stavig said it appeared the only reason some of the 

definitions were there was to regulate size, which isn’t an ideal way of regulating. Greenwood said 

for the definition of grade, the commission should consider whether they are talking about building 

or zoning. McGann said for the structure, the height of the building comes into play and the IRC 

has a definition that they don’t need to change. 

McGann said he thought they should discuss what size structures should be allowed to be 

constructed on grade and what size buildings don’t require a building permit. McGann said he could 

see a tool shed being exempt from a building permit, but not a 20’x20’ building. Frohnapfel said 

the use of the building should play a part. Greenwood said that only one-story detached accessory 

structures that are less than 200 square feet are exempt from a building permit. The commission 

concurred with this size building not requiring a permit. 

Stavig explained that the frost protection was what required a certain depth for a foundation. Under 

the IRC, if he was building a 200 square foot shed he would be exempt from a building permit, but 

would have to have a foundation. McGann said he would look into the issue and get back to the 

commission. 

The commission concurred with the remainder of the staff recommendations. 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

3 of 96

planner2
DRAFT



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

April 11, 2017

Page 3 of 3

Greenwood said that in moving forward with the code change, they would amend the IRC to delete 

the Part 2, which contains the building permit administration and write their own. McGann verified 

that they would also write a new code chapter for amendments to the IRC. He wants to see a redline 

of the code change with the amendments based off of the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation’s 

(AHFC) amendments.

Greenwood said that concerning the AHFC, she doesn’t understand how one of the amendments 

does not require fire sprinklers in garages. McGann said they would look at it closer. Pegau 

wondered why one of the AHFC amendments would delete the use of naturally durable wood. 

McGann responded that it was Alaska and that the term is not specific enough. Roemhildt verified 

that the administration portion of the code also addresses enforcement.

10. PENDING CALENDAR

11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS

Bird said she hoped to call in to the next meeting.

Frohnapfel said he wanted to change street names on a regular basis. 

13. ADJOURNMENT

M/Pegau S/Frohnapfel to adjourn the Regular Meeting at 7:37 PM.

With no objection, the meeting was adjourned.

Approved:

____________________________

Tom McGann, Chair

____________________________

Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

4 of 96

planner2
DRAFT



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

5 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

6 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

7 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

8 of 96



Bruce and Sally Campbell

314 Railroad Row, Cordova AK. 99574-0826 | 907-253-8250 | captsoup@hotmail.com

04/29/2017

Cordova City Council

City of Cordova

Cordova, Ak 99574

Subject:  RFP Blocks 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park subdivision

Dear Cordova City Council,

We are writing to voice concerns regarding the RFP to develop lots 8 and 9, block 1 of the Odiak Park sub-division.  

We appreciate the work that the City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission do……much of it volunteer 

work.   However, we feel this RFP is just a bad idea and as the closest adjacent land owner to lot # 9 we are 

disappointed that the City did not notify us directly.   Now, after the fact and quite by accident we saw the ad 

yesterday for the RFP on the scanner channel. As a tax paying property owner of this community we feel the city 

has an obligation to personally notify any home owner of any city action which may cause affect to a home owners 

personal property.   Sally and I have been in emergency medical mode for months on end now.  Our ability to pay 

attention to anything other than basic survival has been limited and will continue to be so.  At a minimum we are 

requesting that the city be understanding of our situation and allow us a little more latitude in our ability to be 

involved on the processes of this RFP or other planning and zoning work.   We urge the city to reconsider this RFP.  

However, for now we will articulate our concerns and alternative options which occur to us at this time.

Concerns:

We have lived at this location (314 Railroad Row) since 1995, and at the time were told that block 9 was not 

available for purchase, and in fact that it was a city easement which laid upon the old railroad boardwalk from 

Cordova’s early years.  We might have been interested in buying lot 9 at that time but it did not seem to be an 

option.  As you probably know we have collaborated with our neighbors Max and Cecelia Weise, along with Bret 

and Cindy Bradford with an RFP response of our own proposing the purchase of the property.   We have 

considered how anybody might be able to develop lot 9; it’s difficult to imagine how it might be possible without 

causing harm or having effects to our home and property…………and still be in compliance with the city’s own 

regulations.   While development options may appear feasible from looking at a map or plat of the area the “on the 

ground” conditions say otherwise for following reasons: 

 There is no easement from Railroad Row that would allow development access. The property would need 

to be developed from Chase Ave on the SE side of the lot.  

 Access from the SE side would have to overcome very steep slopes and/or cliffs; such as the 15 foot cliff 

face directly behind our house and rising up from Chase Ave.  It would be impossible to develop without 

heavy blasting of the area which would be a safety hazard and could cause damage to several homes in 

close proximity.   Currently the only ground which is level enough to consider building on is approximately 

81’ X 45’ or 3,645 sq. ft. of acreage and located adjacent to our property line.  The amount of rock that 

would need to be blasted and moved in order to allow an access road or cut and fill to create a buildable 

pad would be cost prohibitive.  

 Any building construction on the upper part of the lot would mean totally clearing the land and 

construction at extreme close proximity to our home which would obscure any view we have, be noisy and 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

9 of 96



Page 2

remove any sense of privacy we currently enjoy.  Additionally this is a high wind area which is the result of 

predominant easterly winds coming off Eyak Lake, past the hospital and then upslope through the existing 

trees on lots 8 and 9.  Removal of trees and shrubbery in the area will expose local homes directly to the 

wind and result in wind damage each year.

  There are numerous existing legal encumbrances to the property which need to be considered: 1) the 

sidewalk and ROW clearing limits off Chase Avenue 2) The green belt which is designated and showing on 

city plats and required as a condition of sale within adjacent lots 10, 11 & 12.  How does the city intend to 

be consistent with it’s greenbelt management direction? 3) An easement for a city water line which has 

been missed in the city plats. 4) The existing easement for the old boardwalk or railroad bed.  Cumulatively 

the above easements all would reflect a reduction in acreage available for development, possibly resulting 

in acreage less than the city minimum requirement of 5,000 sq. ft. 

 The greenbelt mentioned above would be obliterated where it crosses behind our home.  Currently the 

greenbelt is intact and provides a mix of positive aesthetics for the homeowners and the public.  The green 

belt is visually pleasing and provides a corridor of cover and is a feeding source for a variety of wildlife and 

birds such as squirrels, voles, eagles, humming birds, varied thrush, robins, stellers jays, pine siskins, 

winter wrens and juncos. Many varieties of birds also nest here. I don’t believe eagle nests exist but the 

greenbelt provides eagles with a cruise zone by which they hunt and roost.  The Forest Service has issued a 

bird pamphlet named “The birds of Cordova and Copper River Delta” which is a checklist of bird’s 

occurring in our area.  Of that listing, according to USFS Wildlife Biologist Milo Burcham there are at least 

20 different varieties of birds that also reside within town.

 The homes along Railroad Row are all part of the early historic railroad era of Cordova.  Our house in fact 

was the home of the railroad superintendent.  It was built in 1909 and most other homes along this section 

of Railroad Row where built about the same time or shortly thereafter. This is where all the early railroad 

employees and their families lived.  As I understand it the railroad ran approximately where Chase Ave. is 

now and the boardwalk existed on the SE side of our property line directly in the middle of lots 8 and 9.  

The entire area is rife with historic relics of early Cordova including evidence of the early electrical system, 

railroad artifacts, household artifacts and even the original wooden water lines.    Having worked with but 

retired from the USFS here locally for many years I am very familiar with the National Historic 

Preservation Act and the strict requirements for the process of reviewing projects that include historic 

properties and the importance of abiding by the applicable laws.  I don’t know exactly how that translates 

to city governments but suspect there are laws that apply which the city and home owners are required to 

comply with.

Alternative Property Management Proposal:

We believe the city is on the right track in the designation of a greenbelt above Chase Avenue.  It makes great sense 

to continue and extend this greenbelt especially in consideration of the points I have made above.  The greenbelt 

could be cooperatively managed between the local home owners, the local Audubon Society, the City and the 

Historical Society.  It would be of benefit to the community, protect birds and wildlife, and protect the existing 

historical resources. The remaining acreage, less other easements and encumbrances could be purchased by the 

home owners.

Cc:  Cordova Planning Commission

        Cordova Historic Preservation Commission

Sincerely,

/S/ Bruce and Sally Campbell

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

10 of 96



Planner’s Report
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 5/3/2017

Re: Recent Activities and Updates

 Two building permits issued since the last meeting. 

 Sunnyside Drive street sign has been installed. 

 Working with CTC on Conditional Use Permit for cell tower. Need to schedule Special Meeting.

 Working through development terms for lease with option to purchase for Jensen’s proposed 

development on Lot 20, Block 23, Original Townsite. 

 Provided information to the public on multiple inquiries about building, setbacks, and zoning 

regulations.

 Researched plats, tax lots, resolutions and provided historical variance and other information to City 

Manager regarding a complaint. Created letters and coordination on solution.  

 State has received grant for Adams Avenue sidewalks city is awaiting project agreement.

 Working with Copper River Watershed Project on Land Use Permit for treatment of invasive plant 

species on city property.

 Tideland permit for Trident’s outfall lines passed City Council.

 Working on work flow analysis and new budget format.

 Tracking grant and loan balance for post LT2 projects.

 Completed draft RFP for Rural Development Grant/Loan for Refuse. Rich reviewed, will incorporate 

edits and send to Rural Development for review.  

 Will be acting Public Works Director through May 8th.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

11 of 96



Variance Request – RJ Kopchak

Page 1 of 7

AGENDA ITEM # 9a

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 5/9/2017

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 5/3/17

ITEM: Variance Request – RJ Kopchak

NEXT STEP: Vote 

      

____ INFORMATION

__X_ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Requested Actions: Approve Variance from Front and Side Setbacks

Applicant: RJ Kopchak

Address: 120 West Davis 

Legal Description: West Sixteen Feet (16’) of Lot Two (2), Block “A”, of the Original Townsite of 

Cordova, referred to Lot 2 in this memo

Parcel Number: 02-060-755-A

Zoning: Medium Density Residence District

Lot Area: 1920 sq. ft.

RJ Kopchak is requesting a variance to be able to build 5 feet from the front property line instead of 

required 10-foot setback and 1 foot from each side property line instead of the required 5-foot setback.

The Kopchaks own Lot 1A and Lot 2 (see Attachment B). Their single-family home is located on Lot 1A and 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

12 of 96



Variance Request – RJ Kopchak

Page 2 of 7

an accessory building is on Lot 2, which is the lot that the variance is being requested for. Both lots are 

nonconforming and under the minimum required lot size of 4,000 square feet. They were legally subdivided 

prior to zoning regulations Lot 1A has a 5-foot access easement on the east side to accommodate access to the 

Phillips property. Lot 2 is 16 feet wide. If the existing nonconforming building on Lot 2 is destroyed, a new 

building would be required to meet setbacks, which allows a buildable width of 6 feet. There have been 

numerous discussions by the commission and City Council about the need for affordable single-family 

housing and the only way to realistically develop the lot is with a variance. This neighborhood has many legal 

nonconforming lots and buildings and with some additional consideration does offer smaller lots and the 

opportunity for affordable housing.

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: 

“I move that the Planning Commission grant the variance request by RJ Kopchak with the special conditions 

contained within the staff report.”

Staff have multiple recommendations that are incorporated into the recommended special conditions and 

further detailed in the suggested findings:

1. Staff recommend granting the variance for the west side setback so the applicant would be able to 

construct the building within 1 foot of the lot line. If the applicant chooses to construct the covered 

walkway, staff recommend a replat of Lot 1A and Lot 2. The replat would move the west lot line of 

Lot 2 to encompass the access easement on Lot 1A. This would allow the attached covered walkway, 

area for snow shedding, and the existing access easement to be contained on a single lot. Also, this 

adjustment would make the best use of unbuildable square footage (access easement). The remaining 

square footage of Lot 1A would provide adequate buildable space to meet current setbacks.  If the 

applicant chooses to not construct the covered walkway, a replat is unnecessary with the variance. 

Granting the variance with Special Condition 2 below allows for either option.

2. Staff recommend granting the variance for the east side setback so the applicant would be able to 

construct the building within 1 foot of the lot line. If the replat described above occurred and the 

current building was destroyed, the buildable lot width would increase slightly to 11 feet, but would 

still be constrained in width due to the access easement. The eaves of the 

3. Staff recommend not granting the variance from the front setback. The Observation Avenue 

neighborhood currently has limited off street parking, and difficult line of site for drivers and winter 

conditions worsen the congestion in the area.  While many of the lots are smaller and have 

grandfathered buildings, continuing to decrease required front setbacks will not help to move away 

from the traffic congestion and lack of off street parking.

Special Conditions:

1. The front setback will be 10 feet.

2. The building and all appurtenances will be contained within one lot. If the covered walkway is 

constructed, a replat will move the west lot line to encompass the attached covered walkway, area for 

snow shedding, and the existing access easement.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

13 of 96



Variance Request – RJ Kopchak

Page 3 of 7

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Possible increased property value and tax base. 

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

A complete application was submitted on April 27th.  

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

Applicable Code: 

18.24.040 – Front Yard. 

There shall be a front yard in the R medium density district of not less than ten feet from curb 

line.

18.24.050 - Rear yard.

There shall be a rear yard in the R medium density district of not less than twenty-five percent of 

the depth of the 1ot but such yard need not exceed fifteen feet.

18.24.060 - Side yard.

A.  There shall be a side yard in the R medium density district of not less than five feet. The 

minimum side yard on the street side of a corner shall be ten feet.

18.64.020 Variances.

An application has been filed pursuant to this section of code. Below is review of the variance 

criteria.

Suggested Findings:

a. That there are exceptional physical circumstances or conditions applicable to the property or to its 

intended use or development which do not apply generally to the other properties in the same land 

use district.

This condition is met for the variance from the required side setbacks. This neighborhood was legally 

subdivided prior to zoning regulations which produced numerous nonconforming lots and buildings in one 

neighborhood. This neighborhood differs from the rest of the medium density district with the number of the 

nonconforming lots and buildings, and the narrower 30-foot ROW. These legal nonconforming issues and 

smaller ROWs make it difficult to meet required setbacks and have a single-family residences.  

This condition is not met for the variance from the required front setback. The lot is 120 feet from front to 

back, providing ample room for buildable area behind the proposed building.

b.  That the strict application of the provisions of this title would result in practical difficulties or 

unnecessary hardship.

This condition is met for the variance from the required side setbacks.  The strict enforcement of this title 

would eliminate new construction of a single family residence. The lot is 16 feet wide and to build to meet 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

14 of 96



Variance Request – RJ Kopchak

Page 4 of 7

setbacks would leave 6 feet of buildable width. 

This condition is not met for the variance from the required front setback. The applicant is proposing to 

construct the building 5 feet from the front property line. There is no practical difficulty or unnecessary 

hardship for the applicant to reduce the footprint of the building 5 additional feet or move the building 5 feet 

closer to the rear of the lot.

c. That the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other properties 

in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare.

This condition is met for the variance from the required side setbacks. The granting of this variance will not 

result in material damage or prejudice to other property owners. The current building is old and in need of 

repair. Replacing this building will increase property values in the neighborhood. The proposal includes fire 

safety measures above the required city code.  The proposal will eliminate snow sliding from the roof to 

existing neighbor’s property who also has a legal nonconforming building. The existing building eaves 

extend up to the side lot line, while the proposed building is setback 1 foot.

This condition is not met for the variance from the required front setback. The granting of the front setback 

could be avoided by shorting the building or extending the building towards the rear of the property. The 

proposed setback for the front moves the building 3 feet closer to the front lot line impacting the already 

limited visibility and congestion in the area.  

d. That the granting of the variance will not be contrary to the objectives of the comprehensive plan.

This condition is met for the variance from the required side setbacks. The granting of this variance will not 

be contrary to the comprehensive plan; it will help to meet development strategies such as:

 Plan for organized future growth and development.

 Anticipate and respond to trends in development patterns.

 Maintain and provide for a balanced and complementary pattern of land uses. 

 Protect the citizens of the community and the investments that have been made.

 Protect property values. The variance can be appealed to the board of adjustments. 

This condition is not met for the variance from the required front setback. The building can still be 

constructed and meet the front setback.

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

Traffic congestion is a concern in the neighborhood due to many nonconforming buildings and lots with no 

off-street parking. 

Response from Public Works:

Sam 

My thoughts on this proposal.

With the existing parking congestion that already exist in the area, and with no off City right of way 

parking, I feel it would be a mistake to narrow any setbacks along the City right of way,

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

15 of 96



Variance Request – RJ Kopchak

Page 5 of 7

Bill Howard

Public Works Supervisor

Response from Fire and Public Safety:

Good afternoon Sam.

I would like to see the plans prior to approval that show Mr. Kopchak will meet  the International 

Residential Code(IRC) for an Exterior and or Interior Fire Wall. For the Protection of both Properties.

Paul Trumblee

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

The variance can be granted, denied or additional special conditions may be added by the commission.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

16 of 96



Variance Request – RJ Kopchak

Page 6 of 7

ATTACHMENT A

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

17 of 96



V
arian

ce R
eq

u
est –

 R
J K

o
p

ch
ak

P
ag

e 7
 o

f 7

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

18 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

19 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

20 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

21 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

22 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

23 of 96



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

24 of 96



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

25 of 96



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

26 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

27 of 96



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

28 of 96

planner2
Snapshot



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

29 of 96



Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods Modular Housing

Page 1 of 5

AGENDA ITEM # 9b

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 5/9/2017

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 5/2/2017

ITEM: Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods Modular Housing

NEXT STEP: Recommendation to City Council

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Requested Actions: Site Plan Review

Applicant: Ocean Beauty

Address: 205 Industry Road

Legal Description: Lot 2A, Block 2, Cordova Industrial Park

Parcel Number: 02-060-223

Zoning: Waterfront Industrial District

Lot Area: 30,684 sq. ft.

Ocean Beauty is proposing to construct modular bunkhouses. 

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

“I move that the Planning Commission recommend to City Council to approve the Site Plan Review 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

30 of 96



Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods Modular Housing

Page 2 of 5

requested by Ocean Beauty to install modular bunkhouses on Lot 2A, Block 3, Cordova Industrial Park 

based on the findings and with the special conditions as contained in the staff report.”

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

New structure expands city property tax base.

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Applicable Code: 

Chapter 18.33 ZONING – WATERFRONT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

The following are the permitted principal uses and structures in the waterfront industrial district:

A. Marine sales;

B. Open wet moorage;

C. Covered wet moorage;

D. Passenger staging facility;

E. Haulout facilities;

F. Marine construction, repair and dismantling;

G. Cargo terminal;

H. Cargo handling and marine-oriented staging area;

I. Fish and seafood processing;

J. Warehousing and wholesaling;

K. Open storage for marine-related facilities;

L. Fuel storage and sales.

Section 18.33.030 - Permitted accessory uses and structures.

A. Bunkhouses in conjunction with permitted principal uses; 

B. Residential dwelling for watchman or caretaker employed on the premises, or owner-operator and 

members of his family, in conjunction with permitted principal uses; 

C. Retail business when accessory to a permitted principal use.

 Ocean Beauty is proposing to install modular bunkhouses which is a permitted accessory use and 

structure.

Section 18.42.010 ZONING – SITE PLAN REVIEW – Purpose.

Whenever required by this code or the city council, a site plan review shall be completed by the 

planning commission with a recommendation to the city council. Prior to the issuance of a building 

permit, the city council must approve the site plan for the project.

Section 18.42.030 ZONING – SITE PLAN REVIEW – Required Information.

The site plan to be submitted as required herein shall contain the following information. If any of the 

information requested herein is not applicable to a given project, the reasons for the non-

applicability of the information requested shall be stated in the site plan:

1. Name, address and phone number of owner/developer;

2. Legal description of property;

3. A scale of not less than 1″ = 20′;
4. Date, north point and scale;

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

31 of 96



Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods Modular Housing

Page 3 of 5

5. The dimensions of all lot and property lines, showing the relationship of the subject property to 

abutting properties;

6. The zoning and siting of all structures on the subject property and abutting properties;

7. The location of each proposed structure in the development area, the use or uses to be contained 

therein, the number of stories, gross building area, distances between structures and lot lines, setback 

lines and approximate location of vehicular entrances and loading points;

8. The location of all existing and proposed drives and parking areas with the number of parking 

and/or loading spaces provided and the location and right-of-way widths of all abutting streets;

9. Location and height of all walls, fences and screen plantings, including a general plan for the 

landscaping of the development and the method by which landscaping is to be accomplished and be 

maintained;

10. Types of surfacing, such as paving, turfing or gravel to be used at the various locations;

11. A grading plan of the area demonstrating the proposed method of storm drainage;

12. Size and location of proposed sewer and water lines and connections;

13. Front and side elevations of proposed structures;

14. Exterior finish and color.

Section 18.08.010 ZONING – DEFINITIONS

"Building area" means the total of areas taken on a horizontal plane at the main grade level of the 

principal building and all accessory buildings, exclusive of steps.

With this definition, the building area is 960 square feet, as indicated in the application. 

Chapter 18.48 ZONING – OFF-STREET PARKING, LOADING AND UNLOADING

Off-street parking for bunkhouses is not explicitly called out in Section 18.46.060 – Off-Street 

Parking Requirements. 

Section 18.48.080 

The planning commission may reduce the required number of parking spaces if the commission 

determines that an unreasonable amount parking spaces is required or that the required number of 

spaces does not meet the city's development goals or its land use needs.

This section provides the Planning Commission the ability to adjust parking requirements as needed 

to meet the land use goals. Staff recommend not requiring additional parking for the seasonal workers 

who will be using the bunkhouse. The workers are typically from out of state or country and do not 

have vehicles.

Special Conditions:

1. The Planning Department must be in receipt of an approved Plan Review from the State of Alaska 

Fire Marshal prior to issuance of a Building Permit.

2. The Planning Department must be in receipt of an approved Water/Sewer Connection Permit prior to 

issuance of a Building Permit.

3. Parking spaces will not be required for the modular bunkhouses.  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

32 of 96



Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods Modular Housing

Page 4 of 5

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

N/A

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

N/A

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N/A

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

33 of 96



Site Plan Review – Ocean Beauty Seafoods Modular Housing

Page 5 of 5

Attachment A – Location Map

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

34 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

35 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

36 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

37 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

38 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

39 of 96



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9
, 2

01
7

40
 o

f 9
6



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9
, 2

01
7

41
 o

f 9
6



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9
, 2

01
7

42
 o

f 9
6



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9
, 2

01
7

43
 o

f 9
6



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9
, 2

01
7

44
 o

f 9
6



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9
, 2

01
7

45
 o

f 9
6



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9
, 2

01
7

46
 o

f 9
6



PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9
, 2

01
7

47
 o

f 9
6



Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision 

Page 1 of 8

AGENDA ITEM # 9c

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  5/9/2017

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 5/3/17

ITEM: Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision

NEXT STEP: Review Proposals and Provide Recommendation to City Council

      

_____ INFORMATION

__X__ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   

Requested Actions: Review proposals and give a recommendation to City Council

Disposal Property Address: Chase Avenue

Area: Lot 8 = 8,334 SF; Lot 9 = 8,380 SF

Zoning: Low Density Residence District

Attachments: Proposal from Bradford, Campbell and Weise

Plat

Location Map 

The request for proposals for this property began April 1st, 2017 and ended May 1st, 2017 at 10 AM. The 

City received one proposal for the property. Attached is the full proposal packet and the proposal. 

The proposed price from Bradford, Campbell and Weise was $3.30 per square foot for a total of $10,000

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

48 of 96



Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision 

Page 2 of 8

In accordance with the Cordova Municipal Code, the Planning Commission will give a recommendation 

to City Council on the proposal.

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

Staff suggest the following motion:

“I move to recommend City Council approve the proposal from Bradford, Campbell and Weise for 

portions of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision.”

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

The city would receive purchase price of the property and future property tax revenue. 

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

2/2/17 – Letter of interest received from Eagle Contracting (Attachment A).

2/14/17 – At the regular scheduled P&Z meeting the Planning Commission recommended disposing of the   

lot by direct negotiation. 

a. Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision

M/Bird S/Roemhildt to recommend to City Council to dispose of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park 

Subdivision as requested in the letter of interest from Eagle Contraction as outlined in Cordova 

Municipal Code 5.22.060B by negotiating an agreement with Eagle Contracting to lease or purchase 

the property.

Bird said she had wondered about the same questions raised by Bradford. Bird said it sounded like 

the lot lines would have to be addressed. Greenwood said that a title search would clear it up and 

costs would have to be negotiated. Roemhildt said that in the past they have not sold nearby land 

because of the greenbelt issue. He said that disturbing the ground may affect the foundations of the 

houses. Pegau said that the property was a steep cliff and he doesn’t see how it could be developed 

and meet setbacks without a lot of rockwork. 

Frohnapfel said he wanted to refer it back to staff to resolve the property line issue. He said it was 

not up to the commission to determine whether or not someone could use the property; it was whether 

or not the property is for sale. Greenwood said that the city does not have the funds to resolve the 

issue and that typically the title search would be a part of the disposal process. Staff did not know the 

issue existed until they received a letter of interest. In a typical land sale these sorts of title issues are 

sorted out during closing. Stavig said that there is a substantial amount of land the city shows as 

available that the city doesn’t even have title to yet. Greenwood pointed out that this was similar to 

the Section Line easement they discovered on the Power Creek property; all of these issues get sorted 

out during the disposal process, so that the costs for sorting the issues out can be a part of the 

negotiations.

McGann said that you can’t do something on your property that adversely affects the neighbor’s 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

49 of 96



Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision 

Page 3 of 8

property. He said that just because it is available does not obligate the commission to dispose of it. 

Bird said that all of the properties along the hill were shown as available and that maybe they should 

look at making all of the lots not available. 

M/Bird S/Roemhildt to amend the motion to recommend to City Council to dispose of portions of 

Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision as outlined in Cordova Municipal Code 5.22.060 by 

requesting sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property. 

Upon voice vote, amendment passed 5-0.

Yea: McGann, Pegau, Roemhildt, Frohnapfel, Bird

Absent: Baenen, Kocan

Upon voice vote, main motion passed 3-2.

Yea: McGann, Baenen, Roemhildt

Nay: Pegau, Frohnapfel

Absent: Baenen, Kocan

3/1/17 – At the regular scheduled City Council meeting council directed staff to put the property out for 

proposals

N. New & Miscellaneous Business 16. Land disposal decision and method Lots 8 & 9, Block 1, Odiak Park 

Subdivision 

M/Hallquist S/Joyce to direct the City Manager to dispose of Lots 8 & 9 Block 1 Odiak Park 

Subdivision as outlined in Cordova Municipal Code 5.22.060 B by requesting sealed proposals to 

lease or purchase the property. 

Hallquist said he drove by the lots today, he read the letters Council has received, he read what 

planning and zoning recommended and he read the information that the City Clerk sent. He said we 

listed this as available for sale – thinks it wouldn’t be right to pull it back then after someone send a 

letter of interest on it. Hallquist said he read Tom McGann’s comments from the Planning and 

Zoning meeting which say that you cannot do something on your own property that would adversely 

affect your neighbor’s property so he is willing to take proposals on this lot and see what comes in. 

Joyce agreed and said we should at least see what ideas are out there, including adjacent landowners 

who are more than welcome to put proposals in. He said once the proposals are in, Council could opt 

against choosing any one of them. Allison said he also thinks it never hurts to get proposals on a lot, 

he said we are still at the beginning stages of this one. Bailer said he would support it but hopes staff 

can stay close to this one, really understand what a contractor intends to do here before approving a 

proposal. 

Vote on the motion: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Burton, Beedle), 1 conflict of interest (Wiese). Motion 

was approved.

5/1/17 – Proposal received from Bradford, Campbell and Weise

 

Applicable Code:

Section 5.22.060 – REVENUE AND FINANCE – DISPOSAL OF CITY REAL PROPERTY – 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

50 of 96



Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision 

Page 4 of 8

Methods of disposal for fair market value.

D. A request for proposals to lease or purchase city real property shall specify the criteria upon 

which proposals will be evaluated and the minimum rent or purchase price. All proposals submitted 

in response to a request for proposals shall be reviewed by the planning commission, which shall 

make a recommendation to the city council to accept or decline any or all of the proposals. The city 

council shall review the proposals and the planning commission's recommendation and accept or 

decline any of the proposals.

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

Disposal documents may need legal review. Legal review may be required for the potential land conflict 

described in section VI.

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

After receiving the letter of interest, staff researched the property and discovered a possible conflict with the 

property owners located northwest of Lot 8 and 9. Attachment B is the plat creating these two lots. 

Attachment C shows the city’s parcel data with the two areas of conflict highlighted. Prior to disposal, this 

issue will be investigated further and resolved. 

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

The commission can choose to decline the proposal.

           

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

51 of 96



Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision 

Page 5 of 8

ATTACHMENT A

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

52 of 96



D
isp

o
sal o

f L
o
t 8

 an
d

 9
, B

lo
ck

 1
, O

d
iak

 P
ark

 S
u

b
d

iv
isio

n
 

P
ag

e 6
 o

f 8

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

53 of 96



D
isp

o
sal o

f L
o
t 8

 an
d

 9
, B

lo
ck

 1
, O

d
iak

 P
ark

 S
u

b
d

iv
isio

n
 

P
ag

e 7
 o

f 8

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

54 of 96



Disposal of Lot 8 and 9, Block 1, Odiak Park Subdivision 

Page 8 of 8

ATTACHMENT C

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

55 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

56 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

57 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

58 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

59 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

60 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

61 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

62 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

63 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

64 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

65 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

66 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

67 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

68 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

69 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

70 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

71 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

72 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

73 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

74 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

75 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

76 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

77 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

78 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

79 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

80 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

81 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

82 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

83 of 96



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

84 of 96

planner2
Snapshot



Title 16 Building Code Discussion

Page 1 of 2

AGENDA ITEM # 10a

Planning Commission Meeting Date: 5/9/2017

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONN  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM
      

FROM: Planning Staff

DATE: 5/3/17

ITEM: Title 16 Building Code Discussion

NEXT STEP: Ordinance format

      

__X__ INFORMATION

_____ MOTION

_____   RESOLUTION

      

                                                                                                    

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Attached is the new version of Title 16 Building Codes. No edits have been made to Chapters 16.80 Mobile 

Home Parks and 16.90 Trailers and Trailer Camps. The end product will be an ordinance repealing Chapter 

16.05 through Chapter 16.75 and replacing them with the attached document. Chapters 16.80 and 16.90 will 

remain as codified now. 

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:

The commission should review the attached document and come to the meeting with comments, concerns 

or edits. 

 

Staff is developing a list of chapters and sections located in different titles, such as Title 18 and Title 1, 

which will need to be edited due to the changes in Title 16. Staff will develop a draft ordinance for review 

by the city attorney. After attorney review, the final step for the commission would be to recommend the 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

85 of 96



Title 16 Building Code Discussion

Page 2 of 2

ordinance to city council.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

None at this step. The City Manager will determine when legal expenses can be incurred. 

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

This is the continuation of the Title 16 Building Code rewrite.

V. LEGAL ISSUES:

Unknown

VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:

N/A

VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:

N?A

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

86 of 96



Chapter 16.10 - BUILDING REGULATION

16.10.010 - Adoption of codes.

16.10.015 - Copies on file.

Chapter 16.15 - BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION

16.15.015 - Building Code—Modifications.

16.15.020 - Building Code—Disclaimers.

16.15.025 - Building permit required.

16.15.030 - Building Official 

16.15.035 - Work exempt from permit.

16.15.040 - Building Code—Appeals.

16.15.045 - Building permit fees.

16.15.050 - Stop work order.

16.15.055 – Violations.

Chapter 16.20 – INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE

Chapter 16.30 – INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

87 of 96



Chapter 16.10 - BUILDING REGULATION 

16.10.010 - Adoption of codes.

The city adopts by reference the following codes:

A. 2009 International Building Code, or current adopted state code, as amended by the state, for all 

buildings except one- and two-family dwellings and residential accessory buildings.

B. 2012 International Residential Code.

C. 1997 Uniform Code for Abatement of Dangerous Buildings.

Although not published in full in this section, all the provisions of these codes shall be and are 

adopted by reference to the same extent as if set forth in full herein, except to the extent that they 

shall be in conflict with this code or any relevant ordinance later adopted in which case the 

provisions of this code and later ordinances shall prevail.

16.10.015 - Copies on file.

One copy of each code of technical regulation adopted by reference in Section 16.05.010 shall be 

kept in the office of the clerk.

Chapter 16.15 - BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION

16.15.015 - Building Code—Modifications.

The city council shall have power to modify the provisions of the Building Codes adopted by this 

title.

16.15.020 - Building Code—Disclaimers.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this chapter is, for any reason, held to be 

unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 

chapter. The city council hereby declares that it would have passed the ordinance codified in this 

chapter, and each section, subsection, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one 

or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be declared unconstitutional.

16.15.025 - Building permit required. - Delete 18.76.070 Building Permit. Needs to be added to 1.28 as 

violation; Delete 16.17 Site Plan

A building permit shall be required for the erection, construction, establishment, moving, 

alteration, enlargement, repair or conversion of any building or structure in any district established 

by this title, subject to the following provisions: 

A. Application for a building permit shall be filed with the building official on a form approved 

by him. If the application meets the requirements of this title and any other applicable 

regulations, the building official will issue a building permit.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

88 of 96



B. In all cases where the planning commission or the board of adjustment has allowed a variance 

or an exception, the building official shall issue a building permit sufficient to allow such 

building or work to be done in accordance with that decision; provided, that no permit shall be 

issued pursuant to any decision until the time for rehearing or for appeal shall have expired and 

then only in the event that no appeal or application for rehearing shall have been filed within 

such time.  

C. No building permit shall be issued by the building official without a coincident application for 

zoning compliance. Any permit issued in conflict with the zoning title shall be null and void.

D. The building permit or copy of it shall be displayed at the work site until completion of the 

project. 

E. It shall be the duty of every person who performs work for the installation or repair of a 

building or structure for which this title refers to, to comply with the codes. 

F. The issuance or granting of a building permit or approval of plans or specifications under the     

authority of the Building Code shall not be deemed or construed to be a permit for or an 

approval of any violation of any of the provisions of this title or any amendment thereto. No 

permit presuming to give authority to violate or cancel any of the provisions of this title shall 

be valid except insofar as the work or use which is authorized is lawful and permitted.  

18.80.020 - Building permit—Scope and validity. Delete adding here-18.80 do we need 

this in zoning as well?

16.15.030 – Building Official.

The building official shall be the officer charged with the administration and enforcement of this    

title. The public works director shall act as building official unless the City Manager otherwise 

designates.

16.15.035 - Work exempt from permit.

Exemptions from permit requirements of this code shall not be deemed to grant authorization for 

any work to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions of the code of any other laws or 

ordinances. Permits shall not be required for the following:

A. One-story detached accessory structures used as tool and storage sheds, playhouses and similar 

uses, provided the floor area does not exceed 200 square feet.

16.15.040 - Building Code—Appeals.

Whenever the building official shall disapprove an application or refuse to grant a permit applied 

for, or when it is claimed that the provisions of the code do not apply or that the true intent and 

meaning of the code has been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the applicant may appeal the 

decision of the building official in the manner set forth in Section 18.64.040. Appeals of the 

Planning Commission shall be conducted in the manner set forth in Section 18.64.030.

16.15.045 - Building permit fees.

A. Fees shall be established by resolution of the city council.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

89 of 96



B. Where work for which a permit is required by this chapter is started or proceeded with prior to 

obtaining such permit, the fees specified by resolution shall be doubled.

16.15.050 - Stop work order.

A. Upon notice from the building official that work on any building or structure is being 

performed contrary to the provisions of this code or in an unsafe and dangerous manner, such 

work shall be immediately stopped. The stop work order shall be in writing and shall be given 

to the owner of the property involved, or to the owner's agent or to the person doing the work 

and shall state the conditions under which work will be permitted to resume.

B. Unlawful continuance. Any person who shall continue any work in or about the structure after 

having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to 

perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to penalties as prescribed 

by law.

16.15.055 – Violations.

Failure to obey or comply with any provision of this title or any rule, order or regulation issued 

thereunder is a violation. The minimum penalty upon conviction of a single violation of this 

chapter is specified in Chapter 1.28.  

Chapter 16.20 – INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE

The following amendments are made to the International Building Code, 2009 Edition (references 

are to section numbers in the International Building Code):

A. Section 1609.3 Basic wind speed, is amended by adding the following:

The basic wind speed in MPH, for the determination of the wind loads shall be 110 MPH.

Chapter 16.30 – INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE 

The following amendments are made to the International Residential Code, 2012 Edition 

(references are to section numbers in the International Residential Code):

A. R101.1, Title, is amended to read as follows:

This code shall be known as the 2012 International Residential Code (IRC) with amendments 

and shall be cited as such.  It is referred to herein as 'the code'.

B. R101.2, Scope, is amended to read as follows:

The 2012 IRC with Amendments shall be the referenced code for residential structures 

containing three or fewer dwellings and townhouses not more than three stories above grade 

plane in height and their accessory structures.

C. Part 2, Administration and Enforcement, is deleted.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

90 of 96



D. Table R301.2(1), Climatic and Geographic Design Criteria, is amended to read as follows:

GROUND SNOW LOAD 100 lbs. per sq. foot

Speed (mph) 110 miles per hour
WIND DESIGN

Topographic Effects No

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY D2

Weathering Severe

Frost Line Depth 24”SUBJECT TO DAMAGE FROM

Termite No

WINTER DESIGN TEMP 1° F

ICE BARRIER UNDERLAYMENT REQUIRED Yes

FLOOD HAZARDS 2015 FIRM and FIS

AIR FREEZING INDEX 2500

MEAN ANNUAL TEMP

E. R302.2, Townhouses, is amended in the exception, to add at the beginning of the paragraph:

If the building is not constructed utilizing a fire-suppression system, a common 2 hour fire-

resistance-rated wall shall be used. If it is constructed with an approved fire-suppression 

system…

F. R303.3, Bathrooms, is amended to read as follows, with the exception deleted:

Bathrooms, water closet compartments and other similar rooms shall be provided with exhaust 

ventilation in accordance with the requirements of ANSI/ASHRAE 62.2-2010 as amended in 

R403.5 of the 2012 Building Energy Efficiency Standard and per manufacturer requirements.

G. R303.4, Mechanical ventilation, is amended to read as follows: 

Whole-house and spot ventilation shall be installed per the requirements of ANSI/ASHRAE 

62.2-2010 as amended in R403.5 of the 2012 Building Energy Efficiency Standard (chapter 11 

of the code with Alaska-specific amendments).

H. R303.5.1. Intake openings, is amended to read as follows:

Add to the last sentence of the first paragraph:

… and 3 feet horizontally from the contaminant source.

Delete the second paragraph and replace it with:

 All mechanical ventilation shall be in accordance with ANSI/ASHRAE 62.2-2010 as 

amended in R403.5 of the 2012 Building Energy Efficiency Standard (chapter 11 of the code 

with Alaska-specific Amendments).

I. R309.5, Fire sprinklers, is amended so the first sentence reads as follows:

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

91 of 96



Private garages shall be protected by fire sprinklers where required by the Department of 

Public Safety and/or where the garage wall has been designed based on Table R302.1(2) 

Footnote a.

J. R310.2.2, Window well drainage, is amended to add the following sentence prior to the 

exception: 

Window wells shall be designed to minimize the potential of the well becoming filled with 

snow and/or standing water which impedes operation of the egress fenestration.

K. R313, Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems, is amended to read as follows:

R313.1 Townhouse automatic fire sprinkler systems. If installed, automatic residential fire 

sprinkler systems for townhouses shall be designed and installed in accordance with Section 

P2904.

R313.2 One- and two-family dwellings automatic fire sprinkler systems. If installed, automatic 

residential fire sprinkler systems for one- and two-family dwelling units shall be designed and 

installed in accordance with Section P2904 or NFPA 13D.

L. R317.1, Location required, is amended to delete “naturally durable wood or” from the first 

sentence.

M. R501.3, Fire protection of floors, is amended to modify exception 2 to read:

Floor assemblies located directly over a crawl space containing a direct-vent, sealed 

combustion appliance with forced draft exhaust; combustion air intake must terminate to the 

building exterior. Application of this exception requires installation of a smoke alarm in the 

crawl space in accordance with the requirements of Section R314 Smoke Alarms, with the 

exception of R314.3 Location, and a carbon monoxide alarm in accordance with the 

requirements of Section R315 Carbon Monoxide Alarms.

N. R703.2, Water-resistive barrier, is amended to add the following at the beginning of the 

sentence:

When installed or required by the manufacturer…

O. R703.3.1, Panel siding, is amended to add the following to the end of the paragraph:

Exterior type plywood siding with a grooved pattern shall not be installed horizontally and 

used as the weather resistant siding.

P. R806.1, Ventilation required, is amended to add the following to the beginning of the first 

sentence and to delete the exception:

When located outside of the building thermal envelope…

Q. Table R806.5, Insulation for Condensation Control, is replaced with the following table:

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

92 of 96



Table R-A806.5

Insulation for Condensation Control

Air-Permeable Insulation R-Value Minimum Air-Impermeable Insulation R-Valuea

R-15 R-30

R-19 R-38

R-21 R-42

R-25 R-50

R-30 R-60

R-38 R-76

R-N 2*(R-N)b

*Installed on the warm-in-winter side *Installed on the cold-in-winter side

a. Contributes to but doesn’t not superseded the requirements in Section N1102.

b. Air-Impermeable Insulation R-Value shall equal, at minimum, twice the R-value of 

the Air Permeable insulation.

R. R807.1, Attic access, is amended to add the following to the end of the paragraph:

Attic access shall not be located in a room containing one or more fixtures in the Bathroom 

Group. Access may be located in closets with minimum depth of 23 inches and minimum 

width of 48 inches.

S. Chapter 11, Energy Efficiency, is replaced with the following:

The 2012 Building Energy Efficiency Standard (BEES), being comprised of the 2012 

IECC with Alaska-Specific Amendments, is the AHFC energy standard for all residential 

construction projects.

T. Chapter 12, Mechanical Administration, is deleted.

U. M1301.2, Identification, is replaced with the following:

Each length of uncut pipe and tubing, and each pipe fitting utilized in a mechanical system 

shall bear the identification of the manufacturer.

V. M1501.1, Outdoor discharge, is amended to delete the exception.

W. M1502.4.2, Duct installation, is amended as follows:

In the first sentence, replace '12' with '10' to conform with section R1604.1.3 Support.

Remove from the end of the third sentence “…and shall be mechanically fastened…” and 

replace it with “…except where in conflict with the requirements of M1502.”

Replace the last sentence with the following: 

Dryer exhaust ducts shall not be joined with screws or similar fasteners that protrude into the 

duct.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

93 of 96



X. M1506.2, Exhaust openings, is amended as follows:

Add to the end of the first sentence: 

…and 3 feet (914 mm) horizontally from the air intake.

Add the exception: 

Exhaust and intake openings that are part of a system engineered to prevent entrainment of 

exhaust air are exempt; the exemption applies only to the exhaust and intake that is part of the 

engineered system only, adjacent exhaust and inlet openings are not exempt.

Add the exception: 

A ventilation system’s supply and exhaust vents on the exterior of a building may be separated 

less than 10 feet as long as they are separated a minimum of 6 feet horizontally. (to conform 

with Alaska-specific amendments to ANSI/ASHRAE 62.2-2010)

Y. M1507, Mechanical ventilation is replaced with the following:

Mechanical Ventilation shall be installed per the requirements of ANSI/ASHRAE 62.2-2010 

as amended in R403.5 of the 2012 Building Energy Efficiency Standard and per manufacturer 

requirements.

Z. M1602.1, Return air, is amended to add to the end of the second sentence:

only if an exhaust fan is installed with automated control such that a positive pressure is not 

exerted on the structure while the furnace supply air handler is operating. Supply only systems 

and/or systems designed to induce a positive pressure inside the dwelling with reference to the 

outdoors are not permitted in Alaska.

AA. M1602.2, Prohibited sources, is amended to add to the end of 1:

…and at least 3' horizontally from the air intake.

BB. Chapter 23, Solar Energy Systems, is replaced with the following:

Per AS 18.60.705 (a)(3): the 1997 edition of the Uniform Solar Energy Code published by the 

International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials and adopted at the 67th 

annual conference, September 1996, excluding pages 1-7 of Part I, Administration.

CC. G2412.9, Identification, is replaced with the following:

Each uncut length of pipe and tubing and each pipe fitting, utilized in a fuel gas system, shall 

bear the identification of the manufacturer.

DD. Chapters 25-43 are deleted. 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
MAY 9, 2017

94 of 96



SUNDAY
FIRST DAY OF WEEK

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

30 01 02 03 04 05 06

6:00 PM - City Council Work 7:00 PM - Fisheries Development

Session Committee

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B) (Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

7:00 PM - City Council Regular

Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

07 08 09 10 11 12 13

6:30 PM - Planning Commission 7:00 PM - Harbor Commission

Public Hearing Regular Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B) (Cordova Center Room B)

6:45 PM - Planning Commission 7:00 PM - School Board Regular

Regular Meeting Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B) (High School Library)

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

7:00 PM - City Council Regular

Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

7:00 PM - CCMC Board Regular

Meeting

(CCMC Conference Room)

28 29 30 31 01 02 03

City Closed - Memorial Day 6:00 PM - Parks and Recreation

Commission Regular Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

04 05 06 07 08 09 10

2017 MAY

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

95 of 96



SUNDAY
FIRST DAY OF WEEK

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

28 29 30 31 01 02 03

04 05 06 07 08 09 10

7:00 PM - City Council Regular

Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

6:30 PM - Planning Commission 7:00 PM - Harbor Commission

Regular Meeting Regular Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B) (Cordova Center Room B)

7:00 PM - School Board Regular

Meeting

(High School Library)

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

7:00 PM - City Council Regular 7:00 PM - CCMC Board Regular

Meeting Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B) (CCMC Conference Room)

25 26 27 28 29 30 01

6:00 PM - Parks and Recreation

Commission Regular Meeting

(Cordova Center Rooms A & B)

02 03 04 05 06 07 08

2017 JUNE

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

ISSIO
N

 R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
M

A
Y

 9, 2017

96 of 96


	05-09-17 Agenda_0
	04-11-17 Regular Meeting Minutes_0
	1066_001
	1117_001
	LetterofConcern_0
	05_09_2017_Planners Report_0
	MemoRJVariance_0
	1Variance App
	2Drawings
	3Drawings
	4Drawings
	5Drawings
	Memo - OceanBeauty Site Plan Review_0
	OBSI application
	OBSI A SHEETS pack
	OBSI C SHEETS pack
	OBSI D SHEETS pack
	Memo recommendationCCLot8_9_9_0
	RFP Lots 8&9 Odiak
	1195_001
	1196_001
	samMemo - IRC Amendments_0
	RewriteCH16Final_0
	May Calendar
	June Calendar

